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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in 
equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Ugar Sugar Works Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), and its subsidiary Ugar Theater Private limited (Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To 
The Members of  
The Ugar Sugar Works Limited
Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements  
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Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1. Accounting for Government Subsidy
We identified Accounting for Government 
Subsidy as a key audit matter for the 
Company because recognition of subsidy 
revenue and assessment of recoverability 
of related subsidy receivable is subject to 
s i g n i f i c a n t  j u d g e m e n t  o f  t h e 
Management. The area of subjectivity 
and judgement include interpretation and 
satisfaction of conditions specified in 
notification, amount to be recognised, 
recoverability of subsidy. 

During the year the Group has 
recognized the export subsidy of                 
Rs. 4,481.34 Lakhs and Buffer stock 
subsidy of Rs.522.26 Lakhs which are 
significant to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Our audit approach consisted of Understanding and 
evaluating the design and testing of operating effectiveness 
of controls as established by the Management in recognition 
of subsidy. 

• We evaluated the Management’s assessment 
regarding reasonable certainty of complying with the 
relevant conditions specified in the notification issued 
by the Government of India. 

• We understood the basis of judgement that the 
Management has made in relation to the notification 
and subsequent evidence, as applicable.

• We considered the notifications issued by Government 
of India’s Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food & Public 
Distribution to ascertain the appropriateness of the 
recognition of subsidy revenue and subsequent 
ad jus tments  on  account  o f  uncer ta in ty  o f 
recoverability.

Based on above procedures performed, we concluded that 
the Government subsidy is appropriately accounted for.

• We tested the ageing of related receivables and 
assessed the information used by the Management to 
determine its recoverability.

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

2. Contingent Liability

The Holding Company is involved in 
direct and indirect tax litigations of        
Rs. 614.99 Lakhs. The Holding Company 
has also provided Corporate guarantee of 
Rs. 12,125 Lakhs to the Bankers for 
Harvesting and Transportation Loan.  

Whether the liability is recognized or 
disclosed as a contingent liability is 
inherently judgmental and dependent on 
assumptions and assessment. We placed 
specific focus on the judgements in 
respect to these demands against the 
Holding Company. Determining the 
amount, if any, to be recognized or 
disclosed in the financial statements, is 
inherently subjective. Therefore, it is 
considered to be a key audit matter.
(Refer Note D (1) to Consolidated 
Financial Statements) 

• Obtained an understanding from the management with 
respect to process and controls followed by the 
Holding Company for identification and monitoring of 
significant developments in relation to the litigations, 
including completeness thereof. 

• Assessed management’s discussions held with their 
legal consultants and understanding precedents in 
similar cases.

• We verified the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies, disclosures related to provisions for sub judice 
matters and details of contingent liabilities in notes 
D(1) (b), (c) and (d) respectively in the Consolidated 
financial statements.

• Obtained the list of litigations from the management 
and reviewed their assessment of the likelihood of 
outflow of economic resources being probable, 
possible or remote in respect of the litigations.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to, the 
following: 

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in  
Group  are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;  
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
consolidated financial statement by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements 

Information Other than the Consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in Group are responsible for overseeing financial 
reporting process of the Group.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated financial statements  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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 c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of auditors 
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary company, referred in other 
matter paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable that:

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based 
on auditor’s report of the Holding Company and Subsidiary Company. Our report expresses an 

st  e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding Company as on 31
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company, and the report of the 

st statutory auditors of subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group is disqualified as on 31  
March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and report of other auditors.

 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports 
of the other auditors and the financial statements /financial information certified by the Management.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary company whose financial 
statement includes total assets of Rs. 171.16 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020, total revenue of Rs. 3.75 Lakhs and net 
cash flows amounting to Rs.3.05 Lakhs for the year ended on that date respectively, as considered in the 
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss 
after tax of Rs. 0.11 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020. These financial statements and other financial 
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and 
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far 
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting report of the Holding company and subsidiary company.

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  II. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses;

  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provision of section 197 of the Act.

 h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

  III. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary company.

  I. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated 
financial statements – Reference for the same is given in Ind AS notes to consolidated financial 
statements.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered  Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 105215W / W100057

Parag Pansare
Partner

Membership No: 117309
UDIN - 20117309AAAAGN6773

Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020 
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Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of THE UGAR SUGAR WORKS LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date. 

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company, its Subsidiary Company, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in 
terms of their report referred to in the other matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of THE UGAR SUGAR WORKS LIMITED of even date)  

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2020
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of the Management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Other Matters

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, has, in all 
material aspects,  an adequate financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31 2020 except that there is scope for 
improvement in certain areas which require strengthening of controls established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India. We have considered 
these weaknesses identified in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 
March 31, 2020 consolidated financial statements of the Group, and these weaknesses do not affect our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding company.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding 
company, in so far as relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based solely 
on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Opinion 

Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered  Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 105215W / W100057

Parag Pansare
Partner

Membership No: 117309
UDIN - 20117309AAAAGN6773

Pune, June 26, 2020
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Particulars      
As At

 31 March 2020

  Financial Liabilities       

  Capital work in progress 1A.  84.54 

       

 Other non-current assets 6  362.18 

  Long Term Provisions 15A  360.05 

  Investment property 1B.  8.04 

  Other Intangible assets 2  5.27 

            

   Other Non - Current Financial Assets 5A.  64.07 

   Non - Current Loans & Advances 4A.  3.50 

  Inventories  7  58,776.68 

  Financial Assets       

  Tangible Assets       

    Cash and cash equivalents 9  1,139.14 

  Others   5B  6.83 

 Current Tax Assets (net) 10  459.18 

    Trade receivables 8  1,154.79 

 Financial assets

       

     Total   83,091.15 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

  Other Equity  13 

    Retained Earnings 13A  1,376.04 

  Property, plant and equipment 1A.  13,727.38 

   Other Reserves 13A  2,392.12 

 Other current assets  11  6,929.88 

  Equity Share Capital 12  1,125.00 

 Equity

    Share Premium 13A  1,575.00 

   Other Comprehensive Income 13B  17.39 

 Intangible Assets       

 Current Assets

       

       

 Non-current Liabilities       

  Non - Current Investments 3A.  369.67 

   Long Term Borrowings 14A  4,848.25 

  Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 16B  1,081.16 

ASSETS       

 Non-current Assets       

stConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2020         
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Ref. to 
Notes 
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  Financial Liabilities       

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 Current Liabilities       

   Borrowings  14B  36,619.76 

   and small enterprises  17.28 

   Total outstanding dues other than micro 

   enterprises and small enterprises  17,095.95 

  Other payables  17 (ii) 

   and small enterprises      

   Total outstanding dues other than micro

   Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

 Provisions   15B  1,464.65 

       

   enterprises and small enterprises   116.67 

 Other current liabilities 19  4,138.92 

       

   Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

     Total   83,091.15 

See accompanying notes forming part of the A to D

financial statements

  Other financial liabilities 18  10,862.91 

   Trade payables 17 (i) 

Particulars      
As At

 31 March 2020

stConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2020         
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Ref. to 
Notes 
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B. G. Kulkarni  
GM-Corp. Aff. & Co. Sec. 

(FCS-2805)

Chandan S. Shirgaokar  
 MD (DIN-00208200)  

 

Niraj S. Shirgaokar  
MD (DIN-00254525)  

R. V. Desurkar  
GM Finance  
(ACA-23771)

Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020

Parag Pansare  
Partner    
Memb. No. 117309 
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stStatement of Changes in Other Equity For the year ended 31  March 2020

Particulars      
Retained
Earnings

Items of OCI

Others

TotalEquity
Share
Capital

Share
Premium

General 
Reserve

 (Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Reserve and Surplus

 Profit/ Loss for the period    434.54   434.54 

stAs at 31  March 2019 1,125.00  1,575.00  8,351.31 (6,083.72)  145.69 5,113.27 

stAs at 1  April 2018 1,125.00  1,575.00  8,351.31  (6,518.26)  0.34  4,533.39 

 Acturial Gain / (Loss) Net of Tax     145.35  145.34 

          –   -   

 Less : Transfer to General 
 Reserve for setting off     6,083.73   6,083.73 

stAs at 1  April 2019      –      -

 Less : Previous year losses set off    (6,083.73)   (6,083.73)
stAs at 31  March 2020 1,125.00  1,575.00  2,267.58  1,376.54 17.39 6,361.52

 Acturial Gain / (Loss) Net of Tax     (128.29)  (128.30) 

 Profit / Loss for the period    1,376.54  1,376.65 
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stConsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ending 31  March 2020  

 Tax expense:  

Discontinued Operations  

  (h) Depreciation and amortization expense 28  1,374.55 

  (3) Short/(Excess) Provision for earlier years  –   

   reclassified to profit or loss   68.91 

  (i) Other expenses 29  2,978.45 

Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax)   

  (g) Excise Duty on Goods Sold   14,062.75 

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  

                                                                    Total expenses  (IV)   99,991.84 

  

  

 V  Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax

  

  

  Net Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified

  (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   (197.21)
  to profit or loss in subsequent periods   

  to profit or loss in subsequent periods    (128.30) 

 A.  Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified 

  (2) Deferred tax    14.00 

Other Comprehensive Income  

 

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations   1,390.54 

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations    1,376.54 

  from continuing operations   1,390.54 

  (1) Current tax  

 VI Exceptional Items  

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 

Profit/(loss) for the year    1,376.54 

Tax expense of discontinued operations  

  

Continuing Operations  
 I     Revenue From Operations 20  1,01,101.18 

 IV   Expenses  
 III   Total Income (I+II)   1,01,382.38 

  (a) Cost of materials consumed 22  57,243.99 

  (d) Changes in inventories of finished goods,
   Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress 25  7,110.32 
  (e) Employee benefits expenses 26  6,998.36 

  (c) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24  3,521.15 

 II    Other Income  21  281.20 

  (f) Finance costs 27  4,313.24 

  (b) Other Manufacturing Expenses 23  2,389.03 

Particulars      
As At

 31 March 2020
Ref. to 
Notes 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

2

The Ugar Sugar Works Limited th80  Annual Report : 31-03-2020

152



  

  

  

  to profit or loss in subsequent periods   

  Net Other Comprehensive Income not to be

 B. Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be

  reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods   

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)  

   reclassified to profit or loss   1.44 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax)   1,249.69 
  

  Continuing Operations   1.22 
 Diluted computed on the basis of profit from
  Continuing Operations   1.22 

Earnings  per share for Continuing Operations  
 Basic computed on the basis of profit from

  
Earnings  per share for Discontinued Operations  
 Basic computed on the basis of profit from

 Basic computed on the basis of profit
  from Discontinued Operations  

Earnings  per share for Continuing and 

  Discontinued Operations  

Discontinued Operations  
 Basic computed on the basis of profit for the year   1.22 
 Diluted computed on the basis of profit for the year   1.22 

stConsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ending 31  March 2020  

Particulars      
As At

 31 March 2020
Ref. to 
Notes 

 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
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B. G. Kulkarni  
GM-Corp. Aff. & Co. Sec. 

(FCS-2805)

Chandan S. Shirgaokar  
 MD (DIN-00208200)  

 

Niraj S. Shirgaokar  
MD (DIN-00254525)  

R. V. Desurkar  
GM Finance  
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Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020

Parag Pansare  
Partner    
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Financial Year
2019-20Particulars      

Financial Year
2019-20

stConsolidated  Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31  March 2020  
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

A.  Net profit before tax and extraordinary items    1,390.53 
  Adjustment for:   

        6,090.09 
  Operating profit before working capital changes    7,480.62 

 Proceeds / (Repayment) from short term borrowings (net)   (4,234.66)

 Purchase / Sale of Investments   2.68 

   Depreciation     1,366.92  

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (134.33)

E. Opening Cash and Cash equivalents   345.36 
 Upon addition of Subsidiaries   7.07 

  and other assets   (2,520.37) 

   Finance Costs   4,313.24  
   Investment Income   (13.01) 

 Net cash from investing activities   (121.57)

 Interest paid     (4,302.75)
C. Cash flow from financing activities    –         -

 Increase (Decrease) in trade payables , provisions 

   Amortisation of Intangible Assets   7.63  

   

 Decrease (Increase) in Inventories  6,940.87  

 Extraordinary items    –        -

 Proceeds / (Repayment) from long term borrowings (net)   4,848.25 

 Net cash from financing activities   (3,689.16)

  and other liabilities  (7,301.09) 

        Provision for Doubtful Debts  123.85  

 Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables, advances

   Loss/Gain on Disposal/Adjustment of PPE  291.46  

 Interest and Dividend received   10.08 

 Cash Generated from operations   4,600.03 
       (2,880.59)

 Direct Tax      (2.59)

B. Cash flow from investing activities    –        -

 Net cash from operating activities   4,597.44 

 Cash flow before extraordinary items   4,597.44 

D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   786.71 

F. Closing Cash and Cash equivalents   1,139.14 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement  

2 Purchase of property, plant and equipment includes movement in Capital Work in Progress and Capital Advances  
1 Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7.  

 As per our report attached

For M/s Kirtane & Pandit LLP      
Chartered Accountants      
Firm Regn. No. 105215W/W100057      B. G. Kulkarni  

GM-Corp. Aff. & Co. Sec. 
(FCS-2805)

Chandan S. Shirgaokar  
 MD (DIN-00208200)  

 

Niraj S. Shirgaokar  
MD (DIN-00254525)  

R. V. Desurkar  
GM Finance  
(ACA-23771)

Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020

Parag Pansare  
Partner    
Memb. No. 117309 
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

Particulars      

 Balance as on 31 March 2019   21.26 

 Accumulated Depreciation  –   -   

 As at 31.03.2020    8.04

 Balance as on 31 March 2020   21.78 

 

 Impairment for the year ended 31 March 2020  –   -  

 Depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March 2020   0.52

 Balance as on 31 March 2019  29.82 

 Additions (subsequent expenditure) during 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 

 Balance as on 31 March 2020   29.82 

Cost  

 Net Book Value 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As on
 31 March 2020

1B.   Investment  Property

Particulars      

Cost 

 Additions during 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020  –      - 

 Balance as on 31 March 2019   203.53 

 Disposals during 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020  –      - 

 Discontinued Operations  –      - 

 Balance as on 31 March 2020  203.53 

 Accumulated Amortisation and impairment 

 Balance as on 31 March 2019   185.39 

 Amortisation during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020   7.63 

 Disposals/Adjustment during 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020   5.24 

 Impairment during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020  –      - 

 Balance as on 31 March 2020   198.26 

 

 Net Book Value 

 As at 31 March 2020    5.27 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Computer
Software

Note No. 2  Intangible Assets

2
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

a.  Investment in Unquoted Preference Shares 

 37,979.28 (35201.263) Units of Rs. 10 each of UTI Balanced Fund (At NAV)  7.78 

Investments at Cost 

Investments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss  

 
Provision for diminition in value of investments   (122.75) 

     Sub-Total   27.77 

 

  

 
b. Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares

a. Investment in Mutual Funds 

b. Investment in Preference Shares 

 

 (ii) 4,75,000 (6,40,000) 10%  Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
  Rs. 100 each of Synergy Green Industries Ltd. (At Fair Value)   356.87 
 

 (iii) 30 (0) Shares of Rs. 50 each of Dombivali Nagari Sahakari Bank (At Cost)   0.02 

 

 (i) 10,00,000 (10,00,000) 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
  Rs. 10 each of Ugar Quality Packaging Ltd.   100.00 

 (i) 2,27,500 (2,27,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of Ugar Quality Packaging Pvt. Ltd.  22.75 
 (ii) 3,750 (3,750) Shares of Rs. 10 each of Sangli Urban Co-operative Bank Ltd.   5.00 

     Total  369.67 

Note No. 3A : Non Current Investments

Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

As on
 31 March 2020

Advance to Trusts - Babukaka Shirgaokar Tech. Edu. Trust   3.50 
 
     Total   3.50 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 4A : Non Current Loans & Advances

Particulars      
As on

 31 March 2020

2
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 Less: Provision for Doubtful     28.00 

     Total    64.07 

    

 maturity for more than 12 months

 Considered Doubtful    28.00 
     Sub-Total   92.07 

Security Deposits good    64.07 

 Non-Current portion in term deposits with banks with original 

Note No. 5A : Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars      

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 
     Total   6.83 

Accrued Interest on Bank Deposits & Advances   6.83 
 

Note No. 5B : Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars      

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

VAT & Excise (Appeal) Receivable   45.31 

Capital Advance Paid to Others   263.76 

Security deposits with Government Authorities   53.01 

Tax paid in Advance     0.10 

     Total   362.18

Note No. 6 - Other Non Current Assets

Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020
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Trade Receivable  
Considered Good    1,154.79 
Considered  Doubtful    187.44 
Provision for Doubtful debts   (187.44) 

     Total Trade Receivables   1,154.79 

     Total  –   -  

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 8 : Current Trade Receivables 

Particulars      

Cash in Hand      16.41 
Balances with Bank : 
 - Balances with banks in Current Accounts :   981.16 
 - Earmarked for Unpaid dividends   31.30 

(With Original Maturity for more than 12 months) 

 - Others    --

Less : Non Current Portion in the above disclosed as Non-Current Assets 

     Total   1,139.14 

 - For Issue of bank guarantees   110.27 

Balances in Term Deposits : 

        110.27 

        1,012.46 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 9 : Cash & Cash Equivalents  

Particulars      

Raw material (at cost) 
 Crop in Progress    10.57 
 Other Raw Material    107.87 

 Sugar, Molasses and Spirit   56,746.43 

  Stores, Spare Parts and Others   1,206.96 
 Stores, Spares, Fuel 

Stock in Trade 

     Total   58,776.68 

 Petroleum Products, Cane Development Material   76.12 

Finished Goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

 Bagasse- Own    628.73 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 7 - Inventories

Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 10 : Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars      

Advance Payment of Taxes   2,415.94 

     Total   459.18

MAT Credit Receivable    407.24 

     Sub-Total   2,823.18 

Less : Tax Provision    2,364.00 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 11 : Other Current Assets

Particulars      

Transport Subsidy Receivable   3.69 

Advances to Cultivators and Cane-Growers 
 Considered Good    1,316.38 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances   (289.12)

Advances for Materials & Services   100.54 

 

 

     Sub-Total   1,605.50 

Balances with Government Authorities   168.25 

     Sub-Total   1,316.38 

Advances to Employees    56.88 
Advances for Capital Goods & Spares   2.47 

Advances for Others    35.73 

 Considered Doubtful    289.12 

Subsidy Receivable from Government    5,003.60 
Prepaid expenses     88.89 

 

     Sub-Total  195.62 

Excess Interest Recovered by Banks - Receivable   153.45 

     Total   6,929.88 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020
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At 31 March 2019    2,000.00   2,000.00 
Increase during the year   –         –        - -
(Decrease) during the year   –         –        - -
At 31 March 2020    2,000.00   2,000.00 

Equity Shares

(Amount in Lakh)

Note No. 12 : Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

Particulars Amount in Rs.No.

Equity shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up  
At 31 March 2019    1,125.00   1,125.00 

(Decrease) during the year  –         –        - -

At 31 March 2020    1,125.00   1,125.00

Increase during the period   –         –        - -

Amount in Rs.

(Amount in Lakh)Issued Equity Capital

Particulars No.

During the year there has not been any change in the Authorised Share Capital of Equity Shares.   

Terms / Rights attached to the Equity Shares   
(i)  The Company has only one class of equity shares of face value of Re. 1. Each holder of equity share is 

entitled to one vote per share. Dividend recommended by the Board is subject to approval of the 
shareholders in ensuing General Meeting   

   

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders

SB Reshellers Private Limited   197.04   197.04 
Percentage Holding in the class   17.51   17.51 

     Total   197.04   197.04

(Figures in Lakhs)Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

No.Particulars No.
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note No. 13: Other Equity 

Note No. 13 (i): Reserves and Surplus

Particulars      

Less : Transfer to General Reserve for setting off    (6,083.73) 

Less : Previous year losses set off    (6,083.73) 

 

Add : Recoupement from revaluation building  (0.49) 

Appropriation for the year   –    --

Appropriation for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)  (128.30) 

General Reserve 

Asset Revaluation Reserve   1.44 

Securities Premium 

        2,267.58 

Capital Reserve     123.07 

Retained Earnings 

Profit/(Loss) carried from Statement of Profit and Loss   1,376.54 

Balance of Profit after adjustments   4,707.68 

Balance Carried forward    1,376.05 

As per last Balance Sheet    8,351.31 

As per last Balance Sheet   (6,083.73) 

 

     Total   5,343.16

As per last Balance Sheet    1,575.00 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 13 (Ii): Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars      

     Total   17.39 

As per last Balance Sheet    145.69 
For the Year     (128.30) 
 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020
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 disclosed separately under Current Liabilities    1,675.75 

         6,524.00 

      Sub-Total    4,848.25 

      Sub-Total   –       -

Less: Current maturities in respect of above loans

 Less: Current maturities in respect of above loans

disclosed separately under Current Liabilities   –       -

Total Long Term Borrowings     4,848.25 

Term Loans   
 From Bank   
 (v) Central Bank of India - Soft Loan for  1Year MCLR + Mar-24  3,985.00 
  Payment of FRP (Secured)   3.50%
 (vi) Bank of Baroda - Soft Loan for Payment 1Year MCLR+ Dec-23  1,253.00 
  of FRP (Secured)  3.25% 
 (vii) Union Bank of India - Soft Loan for Payment
  of FRP (Secured)  1Year MCLR+ Mar-24  1,286.00 
        4.40%  

Note No. 14A : Long Term Borrowings

Particulars Effective 
Interest Rate

As on
31 March 2020 

Maturity 
Date 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  
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 The loan was obtained for payment of cane price arrears for the season 2018-19 relating to the Fair & 
Remunerative Price (FRP). The loan is secured by extension of 1st pari passu charge on all assets at Ugar 
and Jewargi. Interest on loan is subvented by the Government at 7% to the Bank for a period of one year 
upto March 2020. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly Instalments of Rs.83.02 lakhs each. The last 
Instalment is due in March 2024.

Details of Secured Term Loans

 The loan was obtained for payment of cane price arrears for the season 2018-19 relating to the Fair & 
Remunerative Price (FRP). The loan is secured by extension of 1st pari passu charge on all assets at Ugar 
and Jewargi. Interest on loan is subvented by the Government at 7% to the Bank for a period of one year 
upto March 2020. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly Instalments of Rs. 26.79 lakhs each. The last 
Instalment is due in March 2024.   

(iii) Union Bank of India - Soft Loan for Payment of FRP (Secured)   

(ii) Bank of Baroda - Soft Loan for Payment of FRP (Secured)   

(i)   Central Bank of India - Soft Loan for Payment of FRP (Secured)   
    

 The loan was obtained for payment of cane price arrears for the season 2018-19 relating to the Fair & 
Remunerative Price (FRP). The loan is secured by extension of 1st pari passu charge on all assets at Ugar 
and Jewargi. Interest on loan is subvented by the Government at 7% to the Bank for a period of one year 
upto June 2020. The loan is repayable in 18 quarterly Instalments of Rs. 89.50 lakhs each. The last 
Instalment is due in December 2023.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020  

Working Capital Loans 
From Bank 
Cash Credit Hypothecation - ( Central Bank Of India) (Secured) 
 — Hypothecation of Stores   342.45 
 — ODBD     974.78 
 

- Balances with banks in Current Accounts :  –    -  

     Total   36,619.76 

 

 Fixed Deposit from Directors   108.02 

 Union Bank of India    7,946.72 
 Sangli Urban Bank    1,008.49 
 Dombivali Nagari Sahakari Bank   3,945.76 

Cash Credit Pledge (Secured) 
 Bank Of Baroda     8,300.47 

 

 Central Bank of India    13,993.06 

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 14B :  Borrowings 

Particulars      

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 15A : Long Term Provisions  

Particulars      

Provision for Leave Salary    360.05 

     Total   360.05 
 

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 15B : Short Term Provisions 

Particulars      

     Total   1,464.65 

Provisions for Employee Benefits 

 

 Provision for Gratuity   1,421.96 
 Provision for Leave Salary  42.69 
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Note No. 16 - Income Taxes  

  

 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 are:   

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Note No. 16A. Statement of Profit and Loss

(i)     Profit and Loss Section

Particulars      

 Current income tax charge   –   -   
Current Income Tax : 

 Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year   –   -   

 Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences   14.00 
 
 Income Tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss   14.00 

Deferred Tax : 

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)(ii) OCI Section

Particulars      

Deferred Tax related to items recognised in the OCI during the year: 
 

Income Tax charged to OCI   68.91 
Net (gain)/loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans   68.91 

As on
 31 March 2020

As on
 31 March 2020
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(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Deferred Tax relates to the following :

Particulars      

On account of timing differences in -   

Less: Deferred Tax Assets  

Deferred Tax Liabilities  

Depreciation       1,913.34   39.43 

 a. Provision for doubtful debts & advances    (177.28)   (49.26) 

     Total    1,081.16   (55.06) 

        (832.18)   (94.49) 

On account of timing differences in -   

 b. Disallowances under the Income Tax Act   (654.90)   (45.23) 

Note No. 16B. Deferred Tax 

Statement of
Profit and Loss

31-Mar-20 

Balance
Sheet

31-Mar-20 

Deferred Tax Assets (Continuing Operation)   (832.18) 
Deferred Tax Liabilities : 
Continuing operations    1,913.34 
Discontinued operations 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)   1,081.16 

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Reflected in the Balancesheet as follows :

Particulars      

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 17 (i) :  Current Trade Payables 

Particulars      

     Total   17,113.24 

Total Outstanding Dues of other than Micro & Small Enterprises   17,095.96 

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises   17.28 

 

     Total   116.67 

Payable for capital goods    16.72 

Other Payables     99.95 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 17 (ii) :  Current Other Payables
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As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 18 : Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars      

 Canara Bank     5,583.45

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts - Secured 

 (Amounts to be credited to the said Fund when due)         -   
  Unpaid Dividend    31.30 

 From Banks     1,675.75 

Harvesters & Transporters Loan

 Crop Loan of  Union Bank of India   2,711.76 

  Unpaid Matured Deposits & Interest Accrued   2.55 

Other Payables     17.13 
 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Commission Payable   640.30 

     Total   10,862.91 

Investors Education and Protections Fund     -   
Interest accrued and due on borrowings   26.84 

Land Rent, Contractors Retention   0.96 

 From Others    –    -   

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  –       -   

Trade Deposits and Advances   172.87 

     Total   4,138.92

Provision for Excise Duty on Finished Goods  298.83 

Outstanding Expenses   2,726.30 

Rent Payable     31.55 

Freight Payable     37.13 

Amounts refundable to Cultivators & Contractors  25.67 

Statutory Dues Payable   423.68 

 

Advance from Customers   595.76 

As on
 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 19 : Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars      
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For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 20 : Revenue  from  Operations 

Particulars      

  Sugar/ Sugar Sachet  64,995.77 

  Potable Alcohol (including excise duty)  18,118.70 

a. Finished Goods (Including Excise duty) 

 Total Sale of Products   96,619.83 

Continuing Operations 

  Rectified Spirit   2,055.54 

b. Traded Goods 

     Total   1,01,101.18
 

c. Bye Products & Others     1,687.93 

  Electricity   3,157.74 

Sale of Product  

  Denatured Spirit   3,008.37 

  Cane Development Material  –     -   
  Petroleum Products   3,595.79 

Other Operating Revenues 
 Export Incentive on Raw Sugar   4,481.35 

 

Excess Provisions & Unclaimed Credit 

     Total   204.25 

 Insurance Claims Received   115.68 

Non Operating Revenues 
Sale of Services 

 Balances Written Back   42.73 

 Machinery & Bullock Cart Hire Charges   0.32 

Others 

 Sale of Scrap    4.22 
 Miscellaneous Receipts   41.30 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 21 : Other Income 

Particulars      

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 21  : Other Income 

Particulars      

 

Dividend on Non - Trade investments   0.74

     Total   76.95 

Interest on Loans and Bank Deposits and Others   76.21 
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For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 22 : Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars      

 01. Sugarcane 

     Sub-Total   54,000.88 

B. Stores Spares Chemicals and Others   2,873.11 

  Molasses    5,120.17 

     Sub-Total  369.99 

  Purchased   43,293.49 

     Total   57,243.99 

  Rectified Spirit    1,428.56 

 

Less : Inter-segment transfers   (6,208.82)

 

 02. Other Raw Material 

A. Cost of Raw Material and Components 

  Research and Development   192.80 
  Cane Purchase and Development   194.99 

  Others     15.47 

     Sub-Total   6,578.81 

  Harvesting & Transport   10,319.60 

  Malt      14.61 

 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 23 : Other  Manufacturing  Expenses

Particulars      

Repairs and Maintenance Plant and Machinery   1,673.86 

     Total   2,389.03 

Power Fuel and Water    715.17 

 

     Total   3,521.15 

Petroleum Products    3,521.15 
Others       –   -   

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 24 : Purchase of Stock in Trade

Particulars      
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    Others   174.35 

  ii. Bagasse -own   726.86 

 

  Petroleum Products   43.67 

 Less : Excise duty on Opening inventory   927.84 

1.  Inventory at the beginning of the year 

   i. Sugar,Molasses,Spirit etc 
 a.  Finished goods 

    Sugar    60,177.70 
    Rectified Spirit   647.80 
    Potable Alchohol   1,093.74
    Molasses  1,638.22 

       63,731.81 

     Total   64,458.67 

 b.  Stock in Trade at the beginning of the year 

        64,502.34 

 

  i. Sugar,Molasses,Spirit etc 

   Potable Alchohol   1,247.78 

       56,746.43 

     Total  57,375.16 
 
 b) Stock in Trade at the end of the year   -   
   Petroleum Products   76.12 
        57,451.28 

2. Inventory at the end of the year 

   Rectified Spirit   844.48 

   Molasses   5,133.62 

  ii. Bagasse - own   628.73 

 Less : Excise duty on Closing Inventory   987.10 

   Sugar    49,406.76 

 Closing Inventory (net of Excise duty)  56,464.18 

   Others   113.80 

 Opening Inventory (net of Excise duty)   63,574.50 

 a) Finished goods 

     Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  7,110.32 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note No. 25 : Changes in Inventory 

Particulars      
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Gratuity Expenses     207.78 

Salaries, Bonus and Commission   4,978.52 
Remuneration to Employees employed by contractors   1,299.58 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds   439.85 

     Total   6,998.36 

Workmen and Staff Welfare   72.63 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 26 : Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars      

Interest on debts and borrowings   4,074.57 

Other Finance Charges    238.67 

 

     Total   4,313.24

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 27 : Finance Costs

Particulars      

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 28 : Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment

Particulars      

     Total   1,374.55 

Amortization of Intangible Assets   7.63 
Depreciation of Tangible Assets   1,366.40 

Depreciation of Investment Properties   0.52 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)Note No. 29 : Other Expenses 

Particulars      

1.  Administrative Expenses 

 Rates and Taxes    402.01 

 Printing and Stationery   16.84 

 Rent      39.78 

 General Repairs and Maintenance   419.20 

 Bank Charges    3.58 

 Travelling and Conveyance   81.12 

 Repairs and Maintenance of Buildings   107.60 

 Insurance    87.86 
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For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Note No. 29 : Other Expenses 

Particulars      

 Assets Written off    225.41 

 Motor Car/ Other Vehicle Expenses  96.26 

 Commission to Selling Agents and representatives  360.62 

 Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances   123.85 

        1,951.62 

 Donations     2.10 

 Directors Sitting Fees    12.30 

2. Selling and Distribution Expenses 
 Freight and Insurance, etc. on Outward Consignments   653.74 

 Miscellaneous    312.83 

     Total   2,978.45 

 Payment to Auditors   15.31 

 Advertisements    12.47 

        Unrealised Loss  on Units   3.41 

 Bad debts and Sundry Advance Written off   2.15 

        1,026.83 

 In other capacity: 
  Audit fee     1.50 

 In other capacity: 

       11.36 

  Tax Audit fees    1.35 
  Limited Review fees   1.12 

  Taxation matters 
  Company Law matters   0.05 
  Other services (certification fees)   0.70 

Statutory Auditors : 
 As Auditors: 
  Audit fees    7.20 

  Audit fee     2.30 
 In other capacity: 

       2.30 
  Reimbursement expenses  –   -   

 As Auditors: 
Cost Auditors : 

  Reimbursement expenses   0.94 

 As Auditors: 
Secretarial Auditors : 

  Certification fees   0.15 
  Reimbursement expenses   –   -   
       1.65 

     Total  15.31 

For the year ended
31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)Payment to Auditors

Particulars      
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The Ugar Sugar Works Ltd. is a Public Limited Company (CIN-L15421PN1939PLC006738) is one of the leading 
sugar factories in Karnataka. Its shares are listed on two stock exchanges BSE and NSE. The registered office is 
located at Mahaveernagar, Sangli. The holding company is engaged in manufacture and sale of sugar, industrial 
and potable alcohol, and generation and distribution of electricity. Company's plants are located at Ugarkhurd in 
Belagavi District and at Malli-Nagarhalli Village in Kalburgi District in the state of Karnataka.

 (a) COMPLIANCE WITH IND AS

 (b) BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) that are measured at fair value at the 
end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the considerations 
given in exchange for goods and services.

  The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the holding company, its 
subsidiary being the entity that it controls. Control is evidenced where the holding company has power 
over the investee or is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Power is demonstrated 
through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity 
returns.

  The consolidated financial statements include results of the subsidiary company, consolidated in 
accordance with Ind AS 110 (Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Holding Company and Subsidiary Company together referred as the Group.  

  Fair value measurement

Subsidiary Company

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The principle or the most 
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a 
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants 
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Holding Company

  The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Ugar Theatre Private Ltd, a Subsidiary Company of The Ugar Sugar Works Ltd, is domiciled and 
incorporated in India, having its Registered Office at Ugar Khurd-591 316, Company is engaged in the 
warehousing services.

GROUP INFORMATION 

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use. The Group uses its 
valuation techniques that are approximate in the circumstances and for which data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.  
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  Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on 
such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements 
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or 
value in use in Ind AS 36.

  At each reporting date the Group’s management analyses the movements in the values of the assets 
and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting 
policies. 

  In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

  • Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. An asset is treated 
current when it is:

  • Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the entity can access at the measurement date;

  • Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

  The Group management determines the policies and procedures for recurring and non- recurring fair 
value measurement. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Group 
management. 

  • Expected to be realised within twelve months (12 months) after reporting date

 A liability is current when:

  For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on recurring basis the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between the levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

  • Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle. The Group 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

 • It is expected be settled in a normal operating cycle

  • It is due to be settle within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  • There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period.

  • Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period.

  • Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

  (c) CURRENT AND NON- CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

 • It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

 All other assets are classified as non – current.
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  In preparing Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS, Group’s management is 
required to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies, the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period, the actual results could differ from those estimates. Difference between 
actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known or materialized 
and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

  Property, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization less accumulated 
impairment, if any.  The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price / manufacturing cost (in case 
of self-constructed asset), net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes 
(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable 
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, and interest on borrowings attributable to 
acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

  Property, plant and equipment

   Plant and Equipment 10 to 40

  The Group classifies all other liabilities as non - current. The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has 
identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 (d) ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

  The financial statements including notes thereon are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rupees “or “Rs.”), 
which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial 
statements including notes thereon have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement 
of Schedule III to the Act, unless stated otherwise.

 (e) USE OF ESTIMATES

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non - current assets and liabilities.

 (f) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) and OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

  Capital work-in-progress for production, supply of administrative purposes is carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment loss, if any, until construction and installation are complete and the asset is 
ready for its intended use.

   Particulars Useful Life (in years)

   Building  3 to 60

  Depreciation is provided (other than on capital work-in-progress) using Written Down Value method over 
the estimated useful lives of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded during 
the year is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of each addition till the date of sale/retirement. 
The estimated useful lives of assets are stated below: 

   Furniture and Fixtures 10

   Vehicles  8 to 10

   Office Equipment 3 to 6

   Investment Property – Building 3 to 60
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  The economic useful lives of assets are assessed based on a technical evaluation, taking into account 
the nature of assets, the estimated usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history 
of replacement, anticipated technological changes, maintenance history, etc. The estimated useful life is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in estimate being accounted for 
on a prospective basis.

  Freehold land is not depreciated.

  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

  As summary of amortization policies applied to the Group’s acquired intangible assets is given as under.

  Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment loss if any.

  Where the cost of part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the assets and the useful life of that 
part is different from the useful of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined 
separately. Depreciation of such significant part, if any, is based on the useful life of that part.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between 
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.  

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired, if any, in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following 
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment loss if any. Internally generated intangibles excluding capitalized development 
costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the 
year in which expenditure is incurred.

  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized 
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

  Amortization is recognized on Straight Line Method basis over their estimated useful life of 3 years, 
which reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful 
life, the amortization method and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with effect of any change in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

  The Group depreciates building component of investment property over years from the date of original 
purchase / date of capitalisation. 

  The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long term construction projects if 
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment properties are required to be 
replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
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  Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not 
occupied by Group, is classified as investment property. 

  Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from the use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the 
profit or loss in the period of de-recognition. 

  Depreciation on building is provided over its useful life as mentioned above using the written down value 
method as per the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

 (g) LEASES

  The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if  the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to 
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to 
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances that create an economic incentive for Group to exercise the option to extend the lease, or 
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change 
in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental 
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar 
characteristics.

  As a lessee

  The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in 
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

  The Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on 
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price 
of the non-lease components. The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 
underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset 
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in 
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is 
located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, 
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets 
are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are 
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Group 
measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group 
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a 
lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the 
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed 
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payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option 
where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating 
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease 
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying 
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease 
payments. The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to 
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon 
the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and 
there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining 
amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

  For transition, the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are 
expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for which the 
underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis.

  At the end of each reporting period, Group reviews the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
individual asset, Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which an 
individual asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, 
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to 
the smallest the Group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis 
can be identified.

  When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have determined had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. The reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

  At the inception of the lease Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance 
lease. Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

 (h) IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS (TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE)

  After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life. Impairment losses of continuing operations including impairment on inventories are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except for properties previously re valued with revaluation 
surplus taken to OCI. For such properties the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any 

  As a lessor

  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing, 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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  Raw materials, stores and spares, Material in transit, packing materials, crops in progress and 
Petroleum products

 (i) INVENTORIES

  Work-in-process 

  Molasses, molasses in process, own bagasse and scrap are valued at net realisable value.

  Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, labour and a proportion 
of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods excludes 
excise duty. Excise duty is provided on manufacture of goods, which are not exempt from the payment 
of duty.

  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

  By-products 

st  With effect from 1  April 2018 Ind AS 115 pertaining to Revenue from Contracts with Customers has 
replaced the earlier revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 revenue recognition. Ind AS 115 applies to 
contract with customer and establishes principles on reporting the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from such contracts with customer. Group has adopted 
modified retrospective approach. As per the approach entities will recognise cumulative effect initially 
applying Ind AS 115 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date of initial application. 
Since the impact of the same was immaterial same has not been considered in the books of Group. This 
Ind AS does not deal with revenue from lease contracts, insurance contracts, financial instruments and 
other contractual rights and obligations. It also scopes out non – monetary exchanges between entities 
in similar business to facilitate sale to customers or potential customers. Revenue recognition is based 
on the five-step revenue recognition model.

previous revaluation surplus. 

  Finished goods 

  Valued at lower of cost up to estimated stage of process and net realisable value. Cost includes direct 
materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

  The Raw materials, stores and spares, Material in transit, packing materials, crops in progress and 
Petroleum products valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items 
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in 
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on Moving 
Weighted Average basis.

  By-products are valued at net realizable value. Inter-unit transfers of by- products also include the cost 
of transportation, duties, etc.

  Cost comprises costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

  • Identifying the contract with customer.

 (j) REVENUE RECOGNITION 

  Inventories are valued as follows: 
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  Considering the nature of business of the entity, accounting for warranties prescribed by the standard is 
not applicable to Group.

  Revenue in respect of insurance / other claims, interest, subsidy, incentive, etc. is recognized only when 
it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

  • Identifying the performance obligations in the contract.

  • Recognition of revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied.

  Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the effects of time value of money if payment by 
the customer occurs either significantly before or significantly after the performance. The interest income 
or interest expense resulting from a significant financing component is presented separately from 
revenue, unless interest income represents ordinary activity.

  • Determining the transaction price.

  • Allocation of transaction price.

  Each distinct goods or service that an entity promises to transfer is a performance obligation. 

  Costs to obtain contracts and fulfil the contracts are recognised as assets. Such recognized assets are 
amortised over the period that the performance obligation is satisfied and are periodically reviewed for 
impairment. Costs. Recognition is subject to the following clause fulfilment:

  • Costs are directly related to a contract or specific contract and;

  Contract modifications are accounted for as either separate or as a part of the existing contract 
depending on the nature of the modification.

  • Costs generate or enhance resources used in satisfying performance obligation and;

  • Entity expects to recover the costs.

  Income from services is recognised as they are rendered (based on agreement/arrangement with the 
concerned customers). 

  Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

  Dividends

  Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. 
Except where investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, 
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are classified as held for 
sale.

 (l) GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND ASSISTANCE

  Grants and subsidies from Government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that           
(i) Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

  Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established.

 (k) INVESTMENTSIN SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

  Interest income
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 (m) FOREIGN CURRENCIES  

  Transactions and Balances

st  (i) Investments in Mutual Fund are valued at fair market value using NAV as on 31  March 2020.

  (ii) Investment in Preference shares of Synergy Green Industries Ltd is valued at fair market value 
using discounted cash flows.

  Group has measured its investments at Cost except for following:

  Foreign exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for 
exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future 
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment 
to interest cost on those foreign currency borrowings.

  The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of Group.

  When the grant subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis on the 
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they 
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and 
equipment are reduced from the gross book value of property, plant and equipment.

 (o)   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

  Short Term Employee Benefits

  When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of 
the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual installments. When loans or similar assistance 
are provided by governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable 
market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as government grant. The loan or assistance 
is initially recognized and measured at fair value and government grant is measured as the difference 
between initial carrying value of the loan and proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as 
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities. Currently Group does not have any 
grant/assistance that qualifies for such accounting treatment.

 (n) INVESTMENTS

  Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related service is rendered. 

  Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition (in case measured at historical cost) or at the 
rate prevailing at the date when the fair value is determined (in case measured at fair value). The gain/ 
loss on the change of fair value of item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value or loss is 
recognized on OCI (other comprehensive income) or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or 
loss, respectively).

  Transactions in currencies other than Group's functional currency are recognized at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated into the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting 
date. Exchange rate differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in 
profit and loss statement.
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  Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

  Group provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees 
are entitled to accumulate leave for availment as well as encashment subject to the rules. As per the 
regular past practice followed by the employees, it is not expected that the entire accumulated leave 
shall be encashed or availed by the employees during the next twelve months and accordingly the 
benefit is treated as long-term defined benefit. The liability is provided for based on the number of days 
of unutilised leave at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation.

  (i) Defined Contribution Plans

  (ii) Defined Benefit Plans

  Post Employment Benefits

  Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted at the reporting date.

 (p) BORROWING COSTS

 (q) INCOME TAX

  Current income tax relating to items recognised  outside profit or loss is recognised either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or statement of profit and loss.

  Current income Tax 

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for 
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred.

   The eligible employees of Group are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a 
defined contribution plan in which both the employees and Group make monthly contributions at a 
specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. Group is maintaining separate trust for 
Provident Fund and recognises such contributions made to the trust as expense of the year in 
which the liability is incurred. 

   Group has an obligation towards Gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible 
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death 
while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary 
payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of 
service. The plan is managed by a trust and the fund is invested with Life Insurance Corporation of 
India under its Group Gratuity Scheme. Group makes annual contributions to Gratuity Fund and 
Group recognises the liability for Gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent 
actuarial valuation.
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  The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable 
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

  Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

 (r) PROVISIONS

  Provisions are recognized when Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount 
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

  Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to 
determine the present value is a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as interest expense.

  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only 
if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and 
losses.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current 
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 (s) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

  Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down 
to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period.

  Deferred Tax

  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are accepted to apply when the related deferred and 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

  Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of Group or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of 
future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
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  a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and

  Debt instruments at FVTPL

  • Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

  Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments and are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial assets or liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.

  Initial Recognition and measurement

  All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset

  Classification and subsequent measurement

  For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

  • Debt instruments at amortized cost

  • Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  Financial assets

  • Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

  Debt instruments at amortized cost

  A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

  b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (’SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (’EIR’) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables.

  FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

  In addition, Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch').

  Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the P&L.
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  a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

  b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which Ind AS 103 Business Combinations applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value. Group makes such election on an instrument by- instrument 
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If Group decides to classify an 
equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of 
investment. However, Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

  Investment in equity shares, compulsorily convertible debentures and compulsory convertible 
preference shares of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures have been measured at cost less 
impairment allowance, if any.

  Equity investments

  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from Group's balance sheet) when:

  • The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

  • Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through' 
arrangement; and either:

  De- recognition

  a) Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

  b) Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset.

  When Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the 
extent of Group's continuing involvement. In that case, Group also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that Group has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that Group could be required to repay.

  Impairment of financial assets

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the P&L.
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  Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from 
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

  c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

  ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the 
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, 
Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

  d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

  •  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the 
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

  • All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the 
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to 
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

  e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

  Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables:

  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to Group in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at 
the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

  •  Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Individual trade 
receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectable.

  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, Group determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

  Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or 
contract revenue receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require Group to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income 
/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in 
the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

  • Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, 
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 
'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.
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  Financial guarantee contracts issued by Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when 
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss or 

  Initial recognition and measurement

  For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, Group combines financial instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to 
enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the 
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

  The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by Group that are not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments.

  Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

  Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

  Financial guarantee contracts

  Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated 
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized 
in OCI. These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, Group may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit 
and loss.

  Subsequent measurement

  Financial liabilities

  This is the category most relevant to Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in 
the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.
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allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less 
cumulative amortisation.

  Embedded derivatives

  Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially 
recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment.

  De-recognition

  A financial liability is de -recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  Foreign exchange gains and losses

  Financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are measured at amortized cost at the end of each 
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost of 
the instruments and are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

  Group on a contract by contract basis, elects to account for financial guarantee contracts, as a financial 
instrument or as an insurance contract, as specified in Ind AS 109 of Financial Instrument and IndAS 
104 on Insurance Contracts. For insurance contract, Group performs a liability adequacy test (i.e. 
assesses the likelihood of any pay-out based on current discounted estimates of future cash flows), and 
any deficiency is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

  The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair 
value gains or losses and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a           
non-derivative host contract – with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument 
vary in away similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash 
flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest 
rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit 
rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable 
is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the 
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a 
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

  If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, Group does 
not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind 
AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for 
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not 
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or 
designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging 
instruments.
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  Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

  Offsetting of financial instruments

  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

  Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

  Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign 
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives 
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair 
value is negative.

  Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial 
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a 
change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected 
to be infrequent. Group's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of 
external or internal changes which are significant to Group's operations. Such changes are evident to 
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when Group either begins or ceases to perform 
an activity that is significant to its operations. If Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next 
reporting period following the change in business model. Group does not restate any previously 
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

  For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

  The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the 
purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with Group's expected purchase, 
sale or usage requirements are held at cost.

  Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or 
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later 
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a 
hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.

  • Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

  • Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable 
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

  •  Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
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   If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent 
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is 
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

  At the inception of a hedge relationship, Group formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and 
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes Group's risk management objective 
and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, 
the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of 
changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's 
fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective 
in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to 
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for 
which they were designated.

  Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

  i) Fair value hedges

   The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and

   loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk 
hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss as finance costs. For fair value hedges relating to items carried at 
amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the 
remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an 
adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its 
fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

  ii) Cash flow hedges

   The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash 
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of 
profit and loss. The forward currency contracts are used as hedges of its exposure to foreign 
currency risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity 
contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to 
foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to 
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses. Amounts recognised as OCI are 
transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the 
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When 
the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts 
recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or 
liability. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or 
rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the 
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign 
currency firm commitment is met.

  iii) Foreign exchange forward contract

   While Group entered into other foreign exchange forwards contract with the intention of reducing 
the foreign exchange risk of expected sales and purchases, these other contracts.
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  Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. 
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current 
assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. 

  Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, 
to hedge its foreign currency risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is 
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.

 (x) SEGMENT REPORTING

  For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
on hand, bank overdraft, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

 (u)  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 (t)  NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

  Group’s Segment predominantly based on Sugarcane based produce and allied activities.                    
The Operational Segments constitute of Sugar, Industrial Alcohol, Potable Alcohol, Co – Generation 
and Petroleum products Sale. As regards to Geographical Segments, the segments are located at        
Ugar Khurd and Jewargi. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

  The Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance management. Segment 
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with the profit and loss of 
standalone statements. 

  Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for any bonus 
shares, share splits or reverse splits issued during the year and also after the balance sheet date but 
before the date the financial statements are approved by the board of directors. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings / (loss) per share, the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

  The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted 
by Group, with the following additional policies for segment reporting: 

  The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, share 
splits or reverse splits as appropriate. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds 
receivable, had the shares been issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date.

 (W) EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE:

 (v) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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  • The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

  • The availability of resources to complete the asset

  (iii) Gains/losses from transactions in commodity futures, which are ultimately settled net, with/without 
taking delivery, are recorded as ‘Other revenues’ under the Sugar segment. 

  • The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use 
or sale

 (y)  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

  Research Costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on Research is considered as cost for valuation 
of inventory and expenditure related to capital asset is the grouped with property plant and equipment 
under appropriate head and depreciation is provided at the applicable rate. Group will recognize 
development expenditure as intangible assets when Group can demonstrate:

  • Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

 z) SUBSIDIES RECEIVED 

  • How the asset will generate future economic benefits

  Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins 
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life. 
Amortisation is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the 
asset is tested for impairment annually.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

  (i) Inter segment revenue has been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between 
segments which is primarily market led. 

  Subsidies received towards specific fixed assets are reduced from gross book value of the concerned 
fixed assets. Subsidies received relating to revenue expenditure is deducted from related expense.

  (aa) CONSOLIDATION OF ACCOUNTS

 In the application of Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note No. C-2, the Management of 
Group are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

   Ugar Theatre Pvt. Ltd. is a Subsidiary company. hence consolidation of accounts as per the 
provisions of Ind AS 110 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, is considered.

  (ii) Segment Revenue, Segment Expenses, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities have been 
identified to segments on reasonable basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the 
segment from the internal reporting system. 

  (iii) Revenue, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not 
allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocated”. 
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 Determining whether property, plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of 
the cash-generating unit. The value in use calculation requires the management to estimate the future cash 
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate 
present value. When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may 
arise.

 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

 The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the Management has 
made in the process of applying Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods.

 The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

 Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 
During the current year, the management has determined that no changes are required to the useful lives of 
assets.
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  ii. Payable between one year and five years  0.84  

  iii. Receivable after five years  24.36  
  ii. Receivable between one year and five years  16.68  

       

  i. Payable within one year  23.16  

  iii. Payable after five years  –   -  
 The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to  

short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases 
for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with 
these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.      

 b. Taken on lease     

 c. Income Tax, Liability Disputed  199.59  

 a. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts  –    -   
 b. Excise Duty / Service Tax, Liability Disputed  395.26  

       

 c. Earnings per share of Re.1/-  1.22  

 a. Given on lease     

1 Contingent Liabilities not provided for      

 d. Sales Tax, Liability Disputed  20.14  
 e. Corporate Guarantees given to the Bankers  –   -   

  In relation to matters mentioned in point no b, c & d  above ,the Company has filed 
appeals before appropriate appellate authorities. Future cash outflow, if any, in 
respect of the following matters are determinable only on receipt of 
judgments/decisions pending at various stages before the appellate authorities. 
The matters in which the management is not certain that same would be resolved 
in favour of the Company, has been adequately provided.      

       

 a. Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account  41.83  
       

  Machinery Spares  –    -  

  For loans given to the Harvesting & Transport Contractors  12,125.00  

4 Expenditure in foreign currency      
 a. Travelling   5.00  

2 Commitments      

3 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis      

5 Earning per share      
 a. Profit after tax as per the Profit & Loss Account  1,376.54  
 b. Weighted average of No. of Shares  1,125.00  

       
6 Future Minimum Lease Rentals in respect of Buildings      

  i. Receivable within one year  8.92  

Financial Year
2019-20Particulars      
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8 Value of Raw Material Consumed in Note 22 includes additional cane
       

   Indigenous    54,370.87  

    Industrial Alcohol   1,950.36  

7 Value of Imported and Indigenous Raw Material Consumed and percentage 

9 Segment Reporting      

   Inter-segment Sales    

 thereof to total consumption      

   External Sales    

    Potable Alcohol   17,913.82  
    Total   1,01,101.18  
   Other Operating Income

   Imported   –       - 

    Industrial Alcohol   5,079.07  

 I. Primary Segment Information (Business Segments)     

       –   - 

    Sugar    12,678.80  

 a. Value     

   Indigenous   100% 

    Electricity   8,370.34  

 b. Percentage     

    Sugar   –     - 

   Imported   –       - 

 price relating to earlier season/s      

  Revenue     

    Sugar   71,354.76  
    Electricity   3,157.74  
    Petrol Pump   3,595.79  

    Total    22,999.50  
       
   Total Revenue    
    Sugar    84,033.56  
    Electricity   11,528.08  
    Petrol Pump   3,595.79  
    Industrial Alcohol   7,029.43  
    Potable Alcohol   17,913.82  
    Total    1,24,100.68  
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 Segment Reporting      
 II Primary Segment Information(Business Segments)     
  Segment Results (Gross)     

    Petrol Pump  81.64 
    Industrial Alcohol  430.04 
    Potable Alcohol  206.52 
    Total    9,530.67  

    Sugar   7425.83 
    Electricity  1386.64 

       
   Less: Unallocated Corporate Expenses  4,108.09  
   Operating Profit  5,422.58  

   Potable Alcohol   2,263.18  

9 Segment Reporting    83,091.15

   Potable Alcohol   0.25  

       79,573.78  

  Segment Liabilities     

   Exceptional Items   –       - 

   Sugar    28,659.69  

   Potable Alcohol  472.60  

   Less:    

   Total    29,467.84  

  Segment Assets     

   Industrial Alcohol   1,943.90  

   Sugar    69,981.84  

   Add: Unallocated Corporate Assets   3,517.37  

   Sugar    65.21  

 II Primary Segment Information (Business Segments)

   Other Income  (281.20) 
   Profit from Ordinary Activities  1,390.54  

   Profit before tax   1,390.54  

   Petrol Pump    80.33  

   Finance Costs   4,313.24  

   Industrial Alcohol  160.43  

   Add: Unallocated Corporate Liabilities  47,137.76  
        76,605.60

   Electricity    10.41  

   Unallocated     10.10  

   Electricity    5,304.53  

   Petrol Pump    2.08  

       92.74  

   Electricity    173.04

    

  Capital Expenditure     

   Industrial Alcohol  6.77  

Note D : Other Information (Contd...)
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  d "Information about major customers Revenues for the year ended March 31, 
2020 includes revenues aggregating to approximately Rs.31,199.25 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2019 – Rs.29,329.12 Lakhs) 5 largest customers of the Company.   

       
       

  Non-cash expenses other than depreciation     

   Electricity   –      - 

 III Primary Segment Information (Business Segments)     
  Depreciation and Amortisation     

   Electricity    308.93  
   Sugar    843.01 

   Petrol Pump   –          - 
   Industrial Alcohol  82.66  
   Potable Alcohol  6.88  
   Unallocated    133.07  
   Total    1,374.55  
       

 Segment Reporting      

   Sugar    –   - 

   Petrol Pump    –      - 
   Industrial Alcohol  –   - 
   Potable Alcohol  –   - 
   Total   –     - 

       
 IV The Company does not have any Secondary Reportable Segments.     

 V Significant Accounting Policies relating to Segment Reporting     

       

       
  a. Business Segments are determined on the basis of the goodsmanufactured 

and in accordance with Ind AS 108.    

       

       
  b. Inter-segment transfers are recorded at cost except for own generated 

Bagasse and Molasses, cost of which is unascertainable and which are 
recorded at Net Realisable Value.    

  c. Segment report is prepared in conformity with accounting policies adopted 
for preparing and presenting financial statements.    
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     Interest Cost   202.78 

   The Employees' Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by Life Insurance 
Corporation of India is a defined benefit plan.   

      

    Employer's contribution to Pension Scheme  169.92

     Past Service Cost ( non vested cost ) 

     PVO at the beginning of the period   2748.39 

     PVO at the end of the period   3114.32 

      

   II Interest Expenses  

      

 a. Gratuity    

  Defined Contribution Plan:    

      

   Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised and charged off for the 
year are as under:   

      

    Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund  35.48

      

10 Disclosure with respect to IND  AS-19     

  In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a 
defined retirement plan (Gratuity Plan) covering all staff, workers and officers. The 
Gratuity Plan provides for, at retirement or termination of employment, an amount 
based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and the years of 
employment with the Company. The Company provides the gratuity benefit 
through annual contributions to a Gratuity Trust which in turn mainly contributes to 
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for this purpose. Under this plan, the 
settlement obligation remains with the Gratuity Trust. LIC administers the plan and 
determines the contribution premium required to be paid by the Trust. The 
Company has also obtained an independent actuarial valuation of the Trust's 
Assets and Liabilities, and accordingly, the difference has been provided by the 
Company. The gratuity liability has been paid by the Company in case of 
employees, who left during the current period.    

 The Company has implemented Revised Accounting Standard - IND AS 19 on 
Employee Benefits and made the provisions accordingly. The disclosure as per 
revised IND AS-19 are produced below:      

  Defined Benefit Plan:    

   I. Changes in present value of obligations (PVO):  

     Current Service Cost   131.27

     Past Service Cost ( vested cost )  –     -  
     Benefits Paid  (160.37)
     Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation   192,25 

      

     Interest Cost  202.78 
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   IV Net Liability at beginning  of period  

   III Fair Vale of Plan Assets  

     Interest Income   124.43

     Net Interest   78.35 

   VI Actual Return on Plan Assets   119.46

     Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning   1701.46 

      

     PVO at beginning  of period   2748.39 
     Fair Value of the Assets at beginning report   1701.46
     Net Liability at the beginning of period   1046.93 
       
   V Net Interest   
     Interest Expenses  202.78 
     Interest Income   (124.43)

      

     Interest income included above   124.43
     Return on plan assets excluding interest income   (496)

   VII Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation  
      

     Due to Demographic Assumption  –   - 
     Due to Financial  Assumption   142,74 
     Due to Experience   49.50 
     Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss   192.24 
      

   IX Past Service Cost Recognised   

     Unrecogised Past Service Cost-non vested benefits 

     Benefits Paid   (153.56)

      

     Contributions by  Employee 
     Contributions by  Employer   25.00 

     Past Service Cost-(non vested benefits) 

     Recognised past service cost - vested benefits  0

     Return on Plan Assets excl. interest income    (4.96)

     Fair Value of Plan Assets at end    1692.36 

     Recognised past service cost -non vested benefits 

     Interest Income   124.42 

   VIII Fair Value of Plan Assets  
     Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset   1701.46 
     Adjustment to the opening fund   –     - 

     Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit. 
     Past Service Cost-( vested benefits)  –   - 
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     Settelement Effect 

    and Loss Account.  

     Current Service Cost   131.26 

   X Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet and Profit  

     Past Service Cost-(non vested benefits) 
     Past Service Cost-( vested benefits) 

     Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest    4.96 

     Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)   (197.20)

     PVO at end of period   3114.32 
     Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period   1692.35 

      

      

     Unrecognised Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from prvious period 

   XVI Asset Information    Total Amount 

     Curtailment Effect 

      

     Contribution paid   25.00 

     Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet   (1421.96)

   XI Expense recognised in the statement of P & L A/c.  

     Net Interest   78.35

     Expense recognised in the statement of P & L A/c.   209.62 

   XII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)  

     Unrecognised Past Service Cost -non vested benefits 

     Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised for the period   192.24 
     Asset limit effect 

     Expenses as above    (209.62)

   XIII Movements in the Liability reccognised in Balance Sheet.  
     Opening Net Liability   (1046.93)
     Adjustment to opening balance  –         -

     Total  Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in (OCI)   197.20 

     Benefits Paid by Company   6.80 

      
   XIV Schedule III of The Companies Act 2013  
     Current Liability   (1421.96) 
      
   XV Projected Service Cost 31 March 2021   138.30 

     Closing Net Liability   (1421.96)

     Unrecognised Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from prvious period 
     Average  remaining future service till vesting of the beneift 
      

     Cash and Cash Equivalents 
     Gratuity Fund(LIC of India)   1692.35 
     Debt Security(Gvt. Bond) 
     Equity Securities -Corporate debt securities 
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     Other Insurance contracts 
     Property 

  III Actuarial Gain/Loss recognised.   

     Mortality 

    Past Service Cost  

      

    Current Service Cost  16.22

    Settlement Cost/(Credit)  

    Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations.  125.67

     Interest / Discount Rate  6.90%

     Expected average remaining service (In Years)  10.85

    of the period.  171.25

      

     Rate of return (expected) on plan assets  7.60%

   The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, 
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market. The above 
information is certified by the actuary.    

    Interest Income  10.93

    Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period.  143.81

    Present value of expected interest rate shortfall as at the end  

 b. Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets  66.34

 b. Provident Fund    

   XVII Assumptions as at:  

    Present value of expected interest rate shortfall as at the   

      

    Interest Cost  2.07

    Contributions  

     Rate of increase in compensation  6.00%

    Acquisition Adjustment  

    Amount transferred to cover shortfall  

     Total itemized Assets   1692.35 

    Curtailment Cost/(Credit)  

    beginning of the period  27.29

    Benefits Paid  

    Acquisition Adjustment.  

    Amount paid on settlement  

  II Changes in Fair Value of plan assets.   

  Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period.  221.08

 

  I. Changes in Present Value  of expected interest rate short fall.   

      

    Total (Gain)/Loss for the period   (59.34)

    Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the period-obligation  125.67
    Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the period-plan assets   (66.33)

Financial Year
2019-20Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note D : Other Information (Contd...)
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    Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the period.(Surplus   
    Account)  221.08

      

    Surplus/(Deficit)   49.82

  V Amount recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income   
    Opening amount recognised in OCI outside profit & loss  

      

    Net asset/(liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet.  49.82

    account    (36.82)
    Remeasurement for the period -Obligation (Gain)/Loss  125.68

    Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognised in the period.   (59.34)

    Remeasurement for the period -Plan Assets(Gain)/Loss   (66.34)

    Unrecognised actuarial (Gain)/Loss  

  IV The amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet.   

    Total remeasurement cost/(credit) for the period   

    Present value of expected interest rate shortfall as at the end   

    Unrecognised actuarial Gain/Loss at the of preiod.  

    of the period.  171.26

    recognised in OCI   59.34 
    Closing amount recognised in OCI outside profit & loss account   22.51
      

    Current Service Cost  16.22
  VI Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss   

    profit & loss at the end of the period.  7.36

    Curtailment (Gain)/Loss  

    Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss with   

    Interest/Discount Rate  6.90%

    Acquisition (Gain)/Loss  

    Net periodic benefit cost recognised in the statement of   

    Total expense at the end of period.  237.43

    with respect to expected interest rate shortfall   7.36

    Net Interest (Income) /Expense   (8.86)

    Expense relating to the contributions made by the employer  230.07

    Mortality  

    Past service cost  

    Settlement (Gain)/Loss  

      

      
  VII Total Expenses recognised in the Statement Of Profit & Loss   

    Interest rate declared by EPFO for the period.  8.50%
    Yield Spread  1.50%

    (in years)  16.50
    Expected average remaining working lives of employees  

  VIII Assumptions as at:   

Financial Year
2019-20Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
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 II Shri. Chandan Sanjeev Shirgaokar ……… Managing Director (MD)     

2 Relatives of Key Management Personnel     

1 Key Management Personnel (KMP)  Designation   

I Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year       

 and description of relationship     

         

 I Shri. Niraj Shishir Shirgaokar ……… Managing Director (MD)    

 iii Shri. R. V. Desurkar ……… General Manager Finance     

 iv Shri. B. G. Kulkarni ……… General Manager Corp. Affair & CS   

      

  Name of the transacting related party  Nature of relationship    

I Shri. Shishir Suresh Shirgaokar ……… Father of MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar   

iv Shri. Arjun Niraj Shirgaokar ……… Son of MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar   

vii Sou. Geetali Chandan Shirgaokar ……… Wife of MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar   

      

II Sou. Savita Shishir Shirgaokar ……… Mother of MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar   

iii Sou. Asawari Niraj Shirgaokar ……… Wife of  MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar   

viii Kum. Swara Chandan Shirgaokar ……… Daughter of MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar   

x Sou. Gouri Sohan Shirgaokar ……… Wife of Director-Shri. Sohan S. Shirgaokar.   

v Kum. Anjini Niraj Shirgaokar ……… Daughter of MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar   

vi Smt. Radhika Sanjeev Shirgaokar ……… Mother of MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar     

xi Sanjeev Suresh Shirgaokar-HUF ……… Smt. Radhika S. Shirgaokar is the Mother of 
      MD Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar   

xii Gyanshree Enterpreises ……… Smt. Radhika S. Shirgaokar is the Proprietor and

xiii Sou. Bharati Rajan Desurkar ……… Wife of Shri. R.V. Desurkar-General Manager Finance     

xiv Mr. Abhijit Rajan Desurkar ……… Son of Shri. R.V. Desurkar -General Manager Finance    

xv Sou. Renu Kulkarni  ……… Wife of Shri. B.G. Kulkarni, 
      General Manager Corp. Affairs and CS.

ix Shri. Sohan Sanjeev Shirgaokar ……… Director & Brother of MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar   

      Mother of MD Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar   

       

Financial Year
2019-20Particulars      

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note D : Other Information (Contd...)
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v D.M. Shirgaokar Enterprises (LLP) Pvt. Ltd. ……… MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar, Director

ii Sangli Fabricators Pvt Ltd ……… MD- Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar, Director

      Shri. P.V. Shirgaokar and Director
      Shri. Shishir Shirgaokar are Directors   

      Shri. Shishir S. Shirgaokar, Shri. Sohan Shirgaokar, 
Radhika Shirgaokar Mother of MD-

vi Shishir Shirgaokar Enterprises (LLP) Pvt. Ltd. ……… Father Shri. Shishir S. Shirgaokar, Mother 

iii Tara Tiles Pvt Ltd. ……… Chairman Shri. P.V. Shirgaokar, Director 

      Shri. Sohan Shirgaokar are the Directors.    

      Shri. Shishir Shirgaokar & Sachin Shirgaokar are 
Directors   

      Mrs. Savita Shishir Shirgaoakr and wife of MD-

vii Suresh Shirgaokar Enterprises (LLP) Pvt. Ltd. ……… MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaokar, Directors 

      Shri. Chandan Shirgaokar-MD, 
      Shri. Sachin Shirgaokar and 

      Brother of Chairman Shri. R.V. Shirgaokar and 

i  S. B. Reshellers Pvt. Ltd. ……… Shri. R.V. Shirgaokar-Brother of Chairman, 

3 Enterprises over which KMP or Relatives of KMP are 

      Shri. P.V. Shirgaokar-Chairman, 

      Shri. Niraj Shirgaokar-MD,

      Shri. Shishir Shirgaokar & Sachin Shirgaokar are 
Directors   

iv Ugar Pipe Industries Pvt. Ltd. ……… MD- Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar, Chairman

      Niraj S. Shirgaokar Mrs. Asawari N. Shirgaoakr are 
Directors.   

viii Sanjeev Shirgaokar Enterprises  ……… MD-Shri.Chandan S. Shirgaokar, Director 
 (LLP) Pvt. Ltd.   Shri. Sohan S. Shirgaokar and Mother of both 

      Dr. M.R. Desai are Directors

      Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar are the Directors.   

 able to exercise significant influence      

      Shri. Shishir S. Shirgaokar, and Shri. Sohan S. 
Shirgaokar, Mother of Sohan Shirgaokar Smt. Radhika 
S. Shirgaokar and Mrs. Geetali C. Shirgaokar wife of 
MD-Shri. Chandan S. Shirgaokar and Gauri Sohan 
Shirgaokar wife of Shri. Sohan S. Shirgaokar are the 
Directors.   

ix Synergy Green Industries Ltd. ……… MD-Shri. Niraj S. Shirgaoakr, MD-Shri. Chandan S. 
Shirgaokar, Chairman Shri. P.V. Shrigaokar, Director 
Shri. Shishir S. Shirgaokar, Shri. Sachin R. Shirgaokar 
and Shri. Sohan S. Shirgaokar, are 

 Name of the related party  Nature of relationship   

      Smt. Radhika S. Shirgaokar are Directors.   

      Shri. Shishir Shirgaokar-Director, 

Note D : Other Information (Contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020
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11.  Disclosure of Related Party Transactions (Contd.) 

S r.
No.

Nature of Transaction

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 

Key Management
Personnel

Relatives of KMP Related Parties
referred to in 3 above

Total

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

 2 Sitting Fees  ––     2.20  ––     2.20

 4 Purchase of Plant & Machinery & Spares  ––     ––     496.26   496.26 

 1 Remuneration Paid Commission  452.28  ––    ––     452.28 

 3 Purchase of Sugar cane ––     ––     ––     ––   

 9 Dividend Received ––   ––    ––    ––   

 10 Dividend Paid –– –– –– ––

 11 Redemption of pref. Shares  –– –– –– ––

 16 Advance Returned / Repaid  11.86   ––   ––    11.86

  Payable Cr ––     0.25  ––    0.25

 13 Warehousing Charges / Rent Paid ––     44.16  ––     44.16

 17 Outstanding Balances as on 31.03.2020 –– –– –– ––

  Receivable Dr  0.24   0.86   45.12   46.52

 5 Sales- Others/ Consultancy ––    ––     3.65   3.65

 6 Exempt Deposits from Directors ––     28.02  ––     28.02

 7 Deposits Refunded / Paid ––     28.02  ––     28.02

   Total  480.58   106.19   545.03  1091.43 

 15 Advance Returned / Repaid –– –– –– ––

 8 Interest Paid  ––   2.67  ––     2.67

 12 Consultancy / Repairs / Other  –– –– –– ––

 14 Advance in the nature of Reimbursement.  3.86   –– ––    3.86

NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020
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12. The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in "The Micro, Small and Medium  Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have been  identified on the basis of 
information available with the Group. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small enterprises as at 31-03-2020:

Description

  to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period.          –  -    

 ii. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to the suppliers as at the year end.  –   -    

 iv. Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

 i. Principal amount remaining unpaid to such suppliers as at the year end.       17.28

 v. Amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the year end.  0.02

  without adding the interest specified under the Act.           0.02

  when the interest  dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises.       –  -   

  Enterprises Development  Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made 
 iii. Interest paid by group in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 

  (which have been paid, but beyond the appointed day, during the year), but 

 vi. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

S.No. 31-03-2020
Rs. Lakh

NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

13. There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms / companies in which Directors of the 
Company are interested.

 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, 
so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain 
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The capital structure of Group consists of debt 
and total equity of  the Group.

14.1 Capital Management:

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The Group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term 
product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and 
borrowings. Group’s policy is aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings. The  Group 
monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt 
portfolio of theGroup.
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Particulars
Carrying Amount

March 31, 
2020

Fair Value
March 31, 

2020

Trade receivable  1,154.79 1,154.79

Other Financial Liabilities 10,862.91 10,862.91

Amortised cost    

Security Deposit 64.07 64.07

Current Assets    

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

Fair value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL) Investments 369.67 369.67

FINANCIAL ASSETS    

Balance with banks in current account 981.16 981.16

Cash in hand 16.41 16.41

Investments -          -                      

Non-Current Liabilities    

Borrowing 4,848.25 4,848.25

Current liabilities    

Short-term Borrowing 36,619.76 36,619.76

Amortised cost  

Non-Current Assets  

Loans and advances 3.50 3.50

Balance with banks in deposit account – original maturity upto 12 months 110.27 110.27

Accrued Interest On Bank Deposits 6.83 6.83

Trade Payable 17,229.90 17,229.90

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

14.2   Categories of financial instruments:

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 The fair value of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Other Bank Balances, 
Accrued interest and short term borrowings are reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments.

 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial 
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for 

14.3 Fair Value Measurement
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NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

Market Risk:  

Inventory Price Risk

which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the 
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels 
prescribed under the Ind AS 113 – Fair Value Measurement. 

14.4 Financial Risk management framework

 The Group is exposed primarily to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk which may adversely impact the fair 
value of its financial instruments. Group assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to 
mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial performance of Group.

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. 

Credit Risk: 

 In addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to deposits related to lease premises. These deposits are 
not past due or impaired. 

Liquidity Risk:

 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. 
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 
contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled analysing credit limits 
and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining 
necessary approvals for credit. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Group maintains its 
cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks having good reputation and high quality credit ratings.

 The Group is exposed to the movement in price of principle finished product i.e. Sugar. Price of sugarcane is fixed 
by government. Generally, sugar production is carried out during sugarcane harvesting period from November to 
March. Sugar is sold throughout the year which exposes the sugar inventory to the movement in price. Company 
monitors the sugar price on daily basis and formulates the sales strategy to achieve maximum realisation.

Interest Rate Risk

 Fluctuation in fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument because of changes in market interest rate 
gives rise to interest rate risk. Almost all borrowings of Group have fixed interest rate and therefore the risk of 
interest rate change is not material to Group.
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NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

  (Amount in  Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 3
months

3 to 6
months

6 month to
1 year

Between 1
and 2 year

More than 2
years

Total
Mar 2020

March 31, 2020

Financial Assets      

Non – derivative      

Non-Current Assets      

Investments      

Security Deposit   –     0.40 63.67 64.07 - 

Non-Current Liabilities      

Short-term Borrowing 36,619.76     36,619.76

Accrued Interest On 

Balance with banks in 

maturity upto 12 months –     –     –     110.27  110.27 -  -  - 

Bank Deposits 6.83 –     –     –     –     6.83 -  -  -  - 

Borrowing    1,675.75 3,172.50 4,848.25

Current liabilities       

Loans and advances    3.50  3.50

Trade receivable  1,154.79     1,154.79

current account 981.16     981.16

Trade Payable 17,229.90     17,229.90

Balance with banks in 

Current Assets       

deposit account – original 

Other Financial Liabilities 10,862.91     10,862.91

Cash in hand 16.41     16.41

Financial Liabilities      

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

 The following tables analyses the Groups’ financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods and companies 
expected maturity for its financial assets. In case of financial liabilities, the amount disclosed in the tables below 
are contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which Group can be required to pay and in 
case of financial assets, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the 
financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets:

 Maturity of financial assets and liabilities:
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NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

Deferred Tax relating to Net Gain/(Loss) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans  68.91

Particulars March 31, 2020

 (ii) Other Comprehensive Income 
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Deferred Tax   14.00

Current Tax    –   -

Total Income Tax Expense    14.00

Short/(Excess) provision of tax for earlier years   –   -

Particulars March 31, 2020

15. Taxes on income

 The major components of Income Tax Expense for the year ended March 2020 are:

(i) Statement of Profit or Loss 
(Amount in Rs. Lakh.)
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NOTE D : Other Information  (contd...)

Particulars Opening
Balance

Recognised in
profit and (Loss)

Recognised in
OCI

Closing
Balance

31-03-2020

deferred tax assets    

Subtotal of Deferred Tax Asset 737.69 25.55 68.91 832.18

Net Deferred Tax 

Property, Plant and Equipment (1,867.96) (45.38 )  (1,913.34)

Provisions 128.01                      49.23 –     177.27-

Tax Liabilities (1,867.96) (45.38 ) –            (1,913.34)-

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax liabilities    

Tax effect of items constituting 

Subtotal of Deferred 

Other Items 609.68 (23.68) 68.91 654.91

Asset/(Liabilities) (1,130.27) (19.83) 68.91 (1,081.16)

(iii)     Movement of deferred tax   (Amount in  Rs. Lakhs)

 Impact on production & Sales – No major impact on production of Sugar as crushing season was over before 
the commencement of lockdown. The holding company started manufacturing activity of Sanitizer during 
lockdown as approved by government. The business of the subsidiary company remained unaffected.

16. The Group formed CSR committee as constituted pursuant to Companies Act 2013. During the year                    
under review, Group has not spent, since last 3 years average  Profit/(Loss) is negative.

17. Note related to the impact of COVID-19 in business :

 Estimation uncertainties relating to the COVID-19 pandemic Group has considered the possible effects on the 
business that may result from COVID-19, a global pandemic - 

 Impact on the carrying amount of receivables & advances - The Group, based on current estimates expects 
the carrying amount of the above assets will be recovered, net of provisions established.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31-03-2020

As per our separate report of even date.      
For M/s Kirtane & Pandit LLP      
Chartered Accountants      
Firm Regn. No. 105215W/W100057      

B. G. Kulkarni  
GM-Corp. Aff. & Co. Sec. 

(FCS-2805)

Chandan S. Shirgaokar  
 MD (DIN-00208200)  

 

Niraj S. Shirgaokar  
MD (DIN-00254525)  

R. V. Desurkar  
GM Finance  
(ACA-23771)

Place : Pune 
Date   : 26-06-2020

Parag Pansare  
Partner    
Memb. No. 117309 

Signatures to Notes A to D
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  30th September      

  1996 18,768.07   1,079.24   1,579.08  22.5%  13,93,790   15,37,975 

  1997 16,651.47   1,308.91   2,477.41  22.5%  9,47,340   11,05,039 

  1998 20,254.77   1,476.68   5,351.66  22.5%  11,30,355   13,10,645 

  1999 22,895.62   1,931.81   6,064.17  25%  13,99,603   15,51,260 

  2000 26,681.52 2,714.81   6,519.12  30%  14,25,023   17,16,100 

  2011 63,331.97   7,644.60   17,524.51  Nil  17,16,325   19,40,680 

  2006 48,197.14   5,402.95   10,664.00  20%  18,76,166   21,87,595 

  2014  65,221.14   7,532.86   15,990.48  Nil  17,24,930   19,56,070 

  2018 80,191.41   3,408.38   16,443.14  Nil  21,29,061   24,02,026 

  2009 41,556.72   9,246.67   21,581.40  25%  13,19,427   14,68,445 

  31st March      

  2019 91,217.29   3988.27   15,227.05  Nil  19,30,754   22,76,090

  2010 56,651.44   7,243.02   19,615.01  Nil  15,75,618   17,86,430 

  2007 30,569.86   5,579.49   16,762.13  Nil  16,68,394   19,40,351 

  2001 25,464.73 4,113.77   5,818.56  35%  11,89,443   14,82,057 

  2012 66,306.29   9,026.96   15,721.77  25%  19,43,592   22,51,160 

  2005 29,822.75   4,815.51   7,402.30  20%  10,46,480   11,63,180 

  2020  1,01,381.75   2,267.58   13,640.96  10%  16,40,957   17,90,939 

  2008 38,257.74   6,513.81   21,241.75  20%  19,49,390   22,11,445 

  2016 84,612.92   7,960.15   16,066.94  25%  20,66,671   23,23,030 

  2017 59,381.80   10,302.83   16,751.73  20%  9,92,467   10,51,815 

  2002 23,511.06 3,609.39   8,666.63  10%  12,22,416   14,32,455 

  2003 24,575.99   3,489.30   7,968.82  Nil  14,67,798   17,24,490 

  2004 20,287.75   4,201.60   8,043.91  30%  8,37,383   8,76,430 

  2013 72,331.18   10,508.73   17,603.82  20%  15,03,593   15,83,700 

  2015 65,553.46   7,170.38   17,146.16  Nil  20,07,570   23,09,560 

The Progress of Your Company for last 25 Years 

4  Figures relating to FY ended 2005-06, 2006-07 includes figures of Tasgaon and Phaltan and 2008-09,       
onwards includes figures of Jewargi unit.

Notes:

1 Bonus shares of the value of Rs. 7.47 lakh, Rs. 10.65 lakh, Rs. 16.82 lakh, Rs. 50.00 lakh, Rs. 75.00 lakh 
and  Rs. 337.50 lakh were issued as fully paid bonus shares, respectively in the years 1950-51, 1966-67, 
1973-74, 1994-95, 1997-98 and 2004-05, by capitalization of reserves.

2 Accounting year ended on 31-03-2007 comprised of 6 months only.
3 Total Income includes value of sales, income from bye-products and other income, and adjustments in the 

value of opening and closing stocks of finished goods.

Year
Ending

Total
Income

Reserves
and 

Surplus

Fixed
Assets

Rate
of

Dividend

Cane
Crushed

Sugar
Produced

Rs. Lakh   Rs. Lakh   Rs. Lakh   % MT Qtls
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Ugar Sugar distributed food kits and sanitizers to 
the Covid-19 containment zone people at the hands of 

Chairman P. V Shirgaokar and 
Mr. Chandan Shirgaokar Managing Director



Printed at                              Bgm. Ph.: 0831-2421232.Iimimpressions,

D D

ARG  WU OS RR KA SG  LU  TE D

H .,T

D D


